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Rock Castle is a two-story'limestone house done in the federal 
style as it was interpreted in Tennessee. The house was begun 
in 17_8y^and_took_a2p^2iilP_^t§ly_sevenu_years to construct. Timber 
was cut in the surrounding area for use and a quarry was opened 
nearby to provide the stone. jfl

The house is built in the shape of an ULTT with the stem of the 
ITL 1T containing four rooms. The parlor, or j more -formal living 
room, is on the east side of the ground floor with a central 
hall containing the rather simple-stair dividing it from the 
family living room on the west side. The dining room is located 
immediately behind;the family living quarters. On-the second 
floor are three bedrooms, all spacious with ample lighting 
provided by windows on this leve^.^.The basement contains the 
area probably used for cooking and preparing meals. The floor 
is now concrete; however, it was an earthen floor in the early 
days. -

The stone was originally cemen.ted_with lime mortar and sand.
In places it has been improperly repointed with concrete because
rain had washed away some'o'f^tTTe^mortar. The stones were placed
length-wise and width-wise alternately in a fleirTisK'-bon^^attern !) '
although there. Is. no real adherence to tlTis rule throughout the
building.

The^original roof was made-of-smooth pine shingles that withstood 
rain and snow for over one hundred years. The wood shingles have 
since-been replaced with:. a= slate roof so heavy it-has caused'the 
rafters to bow under its weight. $j2/vdt| C^Ml/KJ^

The house has a I'srge stone chimney at either end oj: the_main 
house -with another in the eTlV—The -chimneys'.extend slightly out 
from the main wall to create an effect with light and shade. 
The house has a fortress effect with no windows in the ends of 
the main house except small attic lights. The1 front- of "the''house 
has eight windows and two doors~~ohe "opening on the upstairs 
porch and one below. The four lower windows contain 12 over 12 
panes while the upper four contain 8 over 8. The upper door was 
driginally a "wIiTdow -rbut was converted to a door in the f-185Q T;s 
when^ the_ house was "modernized" to include a Greek Revival jtype 
porch with balcony. ~~ ~ ~ ' ~"~" ""

The interior of Rock Castle is simple and exhibits excellent1 
workmanship. The woo<d_pane 1 ing in "the rooms" and the stairways 
and banisters were done by a carpenter who was very skilled with
•his 'tools, but-unfamiliar with more ornate r'design'. "The wodd
•graining in -the • parlor is an 1850 T s addition and is expertly done 
'.and -well preserved. 'The tfther woodwork is original with original 
'floors and very few interior changes.
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7. Description (cont.)
With the exception of dormers added on the ell, a concrete porch 
at the rear, electricity and running water, the house is little 
changed. However, the setting is very different from the large farm 
operation that was carried on. A large lake created in the area 
inundated most of the outbuildings and surrounding land. Only 
the stone jmiokehouse remains and it had to be moved to higher ground 
when the lake was ifmMLedi f ^>''
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STATEMENTi-OfF SIGN1 pi CrANC £i !

Rock Castle, located in SumnerCounty in Middle Tennessee, was 
built: trefore 1800 by Daniel Stolth. It is almost significant 
property for its owner was very prominent in early Tennessee 
government. No less important 1 is the architectural value of 
this imposing two-story stone house built during the pioneer 
period in Tennessee when Indians were still rampant. As our 
state developed this large land area owned by Smith was one of 
the most productive farms in the rich Central Basin. The house 
and property around it remained in the hands of Smith descendants 
until 1969 when the State of Tennessee purchased it as a part 
of its historic site program.

~)

Daniel Smith came with his family from Virginia in 1$83 and 
settled in the Cumberland River area on Drake's Greek in 
Sumner County. Smith was born to respected members of Virginia 
colonial society and was 'educated at William 1 and Mar^r College.
^After schooling Smith was appointed deputy surveyor in Virginia.
'He'-'-als'o served in- the colonial 1 militi'a'' arid '-'was' import'a'fit : in the 
defense of the southwest area of Virginia during many Indian 
skirmishes. When hostilities between the British and colonists 
began, Smith was elected to the Committee of Safety in Fincastle 
County, Virgih'ia/'In-1775. He was later appointed Justice : of 
the Peace in Virginia County by Governor Patrick Henry and was 
promoted to major in the colonial militia. All this practical
.-expedience .in local government would serve him well in Middle 
Tennessee later.

In 1779 Smith was commissioned along with four other men to survey 
.the .^boundary claims of the lands westward'-between Virginia-and 
North Carolina. This project forced Smith to be away from home 
for one year, and ended in a quarrel between the states over 
the correct line. The dispute was settled in 1791 when both state 
legislatures -reco.gnized-tvhe '"Walker Line," named for one member 
of the Virginia party, \as- correct.

Upon returning-Jiome- from his activities in the west,- Smiths-joined 
his militia unit and assisted in the American victory -at King T s
.Mountain. After the victory he returned home to Washington County, 
Virginia. By 1783 he heard the westward call and came with his 
family to Middle Tennessee. He had passed through this area 
earlier on a surveying trip and knew it well. By 1788 Smith had
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8. Significance (cont.)

accumulated M-,722 acres of land in Sumher County where he built 
his home, Rock Castle, and lived the remainder of his life.

His popularity and. experience in government meant that he was soon 
appointed to public office. In 1783 he was appointed a member of 
the first county court; in 1784- he was appointed official surveyor 
for the Middle Tennessee region; he was appointed secretary of the 
"territory south of the river Ohio 11 by President Washington; he 
served twice as a representative at a convention called by North 
Carolina to vote on ratification of the Federal Constitution; he 
served on a five man delegation from Sumner County that helped 
draw up a state constitution in 1796; in 1796 Smith wa: s appointed 
a presidential elector for the state; he was appointed in 1798 to 
fill the unexpired U. S. Senate term of Andrew Jackson; and, in 
1805, after two unsuccessful tries, he was elected to the U. S. 
Senate 5 during which time he contributed a great deal in dealing 
with western problems. He resigned in 1809 with 2 years remaining 
in his term to return home to Rock Castle.

On June 16, 1818, Smith died and was buried at Rock Castle. He 
had spent most of his seventy years in government affairs and 
helped to lay solid foundations for government in the state of 
Tennessee. He was overshadowed by men with greater personal 
charisma, but his contributions cannot be ignored.

His home still stands as a monument to him and has recently been 
purchased by the Tennessee Historical Commission for restoration 
and preservation. With development of this property, understanding 
will be gained of an outstanding man, and early Tennessee homes 
and pioneer life.


